
Committee Agenda   
 

1 

 
 
Area Planning Subcommittee East 
Wednesday, 7th January, 2009 
 
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Mark Jenkins - The Office of the Chief Executive 
Email: mjenkins@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 01992 564607 

 
Members: 
 
Councillors A Green (Chairman), G Pritchard (Vice-Chairman), A Boyce, M Colling, 
Mrs D Collins, R Frankel, P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, Mrs H Harding, Ms J Hedges, D Jacobs, 
Mrs M McEwen, R Morgan, J Philip, B Rolfe, D Stallan, C Whitbread, Mrs J H Whitehouse 
and J M Whitehouse 
 
 
 
 

A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 
APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 6.30 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 

WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those that request it. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber 
public gallery area 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer on 01992 564249. 
 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 7 January 2009 
 

2 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking.  
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing and copies of the recording could be 
made available for those that request it. 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-
COMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 6) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 

 
 3. MINUTES  (Pages 7 - 26) 

 
  To confirm the minutes of the Sub-Committee meeting of 3 December 2008. 

 
 4. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 
  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 

 
 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   

 
  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs (6) 

and (24) of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 27 - 68) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications 
as set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 7 January 2009 
 

3 

consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 
the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 



Area Planning Subcommittee East Wednesday, 7 January 2009 
 

4 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are the public 
excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front page of the 
agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on the day 
before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of the agenda. 
Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must register with Democratic 
Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), the local 
Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would normally withdraw 
from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the meeting on an item and then 
withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the Sub-
Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind that you are 
limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers may clarify matters relating 
to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will determine the 
application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send further 
information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through Democratic Services or 
our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information sent to Councillors should be copied to 
the Planning Officer dealing with your application. 
 
How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they will listen to 
an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear any speakers’ 
presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) Applicant or his/her 
agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and vote on either the 
recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by the Subcommittee. Should the 

Agenda Item 2

Page 5



Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action different to officer recommendation, they are 
required to give their reasons for doing so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or Structure Plan 
Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next meeting of the District 
Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your Voice’ 

Page 6



1

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee East Date: 3 December 2008
   

Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 
High Street, Epping 

Time: 7.30  - 9.57 pm 

Members
Present:

A Green (Chairman), G Pritchard (Vice-Chairman), M Colling, Mrs D Collins, 
R Frankel, P Gode, Mrs A Grigg, Ms J Hedges, D Jacobs, Mrs M McEwen, 
R Morgan, J Philip, B Rolfe, D Stallan, C Whitbread and J M Whitehouse 

Other
Councillors: J Knapman 

Apologies: Mrs H Harding and Mrs J H Whitehouse 

Officers
Present:

S Solon (Principal Planning Officer) and A Hendry (Democratic Services 
Officer)

76. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  

The meeting was not webcast due to technical difficulties. 

77. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  

The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements adopted by the Council to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee, in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. The Sub-Committee noted the advice provided for the public and 
speakers in attendance at Council Planning Sub-Committee meetings. 

78. MINUTES  

RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2008 be taken as read 
and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

79. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Ms J Hedges 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of the 
applicant being an Epping Town Councillor. The Councillor had determined that their 
interest was not prejudicial and indicated she would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/2045/08 – The Stables, Houblons Hill, Coopersale, Epping. 

(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor J Philip 
declared a personal interest in the following items on the agenda by virtue of being a 

Agenda Item 3

Page 7



Area Planning Subcommittee East  3 December 2008 

2

Theydon Bois Parish Councillor. The Councillor had determined that his interests 
were not prejudicial and indicated he would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1873/08 – The Old School House, Coppice Row, Theydon Bois, Epping. 

• EPF/1970/08 – 3 The Weind, Theydon Bois, Epping. 

(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs M 
McEwen declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda. The 
Councillor had determined that her interest was not prejudicial and would remain in 
the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1859/08 – Great Stoney Arts & Education Centre, Ongar; and 

• EPF/1856/08 – Great Stoney Arts & Education Centre, Ongar. 

(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs D Collins 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda. The Councillor had 
determined that her interest was prejudicial and that she would not remain in the 
meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1997/08 – Old Rectory Farm, Church Lane, Stapleford Abbots. 

(e) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors D Stallan, 
Mrs A Grigg and C Whitbread declared a personal interests in the following items of 
the agenda, by virtue of the first item being a decision of the Cabinet and the second 
as a member of the Town Council. The Councillors had determined that their 
interests were not prejudicial and would remain in the meeting for the consideration 
of the applications and voting thereon: 

• EPF/2019/08 – Land adj. to Hanger 2, North Weald Airfield; and 

• EPF/1997/08 – Old Rectory Farm, Church Lane, Stapleford Abbotts. 

(f) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Jacobs 
declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue of being 
slightly acquainted with the applicant. The Councillor had determined that his interest 
was not prejudicial and he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
applications and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1859/08 – Great Stoney Arts and Education Centre, Ongar; and 

• EPF/1865/08 – Great Stoney Arts and Education Centre, Ongar. 

(g) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor R Frankel 
declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda, by virtue of being 
slightly acquainted with the applicant. The Councillor had determined that his interest 
was not prejudicial and he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
applications and voting thereon: 

• EPF/1873/08 – The Old School House, Coppice Row, Theydon Bois. 

(h) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor P Gode 
declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda. The Councillor had 
determined that his interest was prejudicial and that he would not remain in the 
meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 

Page 8



Area Planning Subcommittee East  3 December 2008 

3

• EPF/1859/08 – Great Stoney Arts and Education Centre, Ongar; and 

• EPF/1865/08 – Great Stoney Arts and Education Centre, Ongar. 

80. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  

It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
Committee.

81. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  

RESOLVED: 

That the planning applications numbered 1 – 9 be determined as set out in 
the schedule attached to these minutes. 

82. DELEGATED DECISIONS  

The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 

CHAIRMAN

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Report Item No: 1

APPLICATION No: EPF/2045/08

SITE ADDRESS: The Stables 
Houblons Hill 
Coopersale
Epping
Essex 
CM16 7QL 

PARISH: Epping

WARD: Epping Hemnall 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Amendment to EPF/2504/07 to include single storey side 
extension, relocation of garage and exclude 3.5m high activity 
wall.

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree 
protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. 

The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in 
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005).  It must also specify any other means needed to 
ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development, 
including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly. 

The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including 
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA. 

The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout 
the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior 
written consent to any variation. 

3 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extensions, shall 
match those of the existing building. 

Minute Item 81

Page 5Page 11



Report Item No: 2

APPLICATION No: EPF/1951/08

SITE ADDRESS: 5 Knights Walk 
Abridge
Romford
Essex 
RM4 1DR 

PARISH: Lambourne

WARD: Lambourne

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Single storey side and rear extension and loft conversion 
involving the construction of two front and one rear dormer 
window. (Revised application) 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 

Page 6Page 12



Report Item No: 3

APPLICATION No: EPF/2019/08

SITE ADDRESS: Land adjacent to Hangar 2 
North Weald Airfield 
Merlin Way 
North Weald
Essex 

PARISH: North Weald Bassett 

WARD: North Weald Bassett 

APPLICANT: EFDC - Environment and Street Scene (Waste Division) 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Variation of condition 1 on EPF/2056/07 to allow bins to be 
stored in situ until 31st December 2010.   

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 This permission shall inure until 31 December 2010, following which date all wheelie 
bins together with the enclosure shall be removed from the site. 

Page 7Page 13



Report Item No: 4

APPLICATION No: EPF/1859/08

SITE ADDRESS: Great Stony Arts and Education Centre 
High Street
Ongar
Essex  
CM5 0AD 

PARISH: Ongar

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: The demolition of existing outbuildings and small area of 
single storey rear addition to main arts centre building and 
new extensions to provide fully wheelchair accessible 
additional teaching rooms, multi purpose studio, overnight 
stay accommodation, dining facilities, supported housing (9 
flats), cycle and car parking spaces, gardens and new 
vehicular access from the High Street. 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with detailed 
plans and particulars which shall have previously been submitted to and approved 
by the Local Planning Authority, prior to commencement of the works hereby 
approved, showing the details of the proposed new doors, windows, eaves, verges, 
cills, lintels and porches to be used by section and elevation at scales between 1:20 
and 1:1 as appropriate. A revised roof plan (currently shown as MHN/14F) is also 
required prior to commencement of work.  

3 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 

4 Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such 
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and 
shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and 
maintained in the agreed positions. 

5 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these 
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall 
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site. 

Page 8Page 14



6 No tree, shrub, or hedge which are shown as being retained on the approved plans 
shall be cut down, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back in any way or 
removed other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without 
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  All tree works approved shall 
be carried out in accordance with British Standard Recommendations for Tree Work 
(B.S.3998: 1989).

If any tree shown to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely 
damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, another 
tree, shrub, or hedge shall be planted at the same place, and that tree, shrub, or 
hedge shall be of such size, specification, and species, and should be planted at 
such time as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   

If within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective 
another tree of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted 
at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation.

7 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree 
protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. 

The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in 
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005).  It must also specify any other means needed to 
ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development, 
including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly. 

The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including 
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA. 

The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout 
the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior 
written consent to any variation. 

8 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of 
landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The approved 
scheme shall be implemented within the first planting season following the 
completion of the development hereby approved.  

The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of 
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a 
timetable for its implementation.  If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to 
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or 
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the 
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, 
and in writing. 

The statement must include details of all the means by which successful 
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting 
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant 
protection and aftercare.  It must also include details of the supervision of the 

Page 9Page 15



planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority. 

The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and 
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to 
any variation. 

9 Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface 
materials for the access road and parking areas shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The agreed surface treatment shall be 
completed prior to the first occupation of the development. 

10 Prior to commencement of development, details of levels shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing the levels of the site prior to 
development and the proposed levels of all ground floor slabs of buildings, roadways 
and accessways and landscaped areas.   The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with those approved details. 

11 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries 
and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the 
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no 
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

12 The Window frames shall be set back into the brickwork by at least 70mm behind 
the face of the bricks.  

13 Sample panels of brickwork to show the brickbond, mortar mix, colour and pointing 
profile shall be erected on site and approved by the LPA in writing prior to the 
commencement of any works.  

14 The 'Girls' sign on the southern elevation is to be retained in situ. 

15 The 9 supported housing units fronting Ongar High Street to the south of the school 
building and the two storey overnight stay accommodation unit adjacent to Great 
Stony Park shall only be used for the accommodation of persons who are on 
courses at the development for the duration of the course they are attending and 
shall not be used for any other purpose. 

16 Equipment shall be installed to suppress and disperse cooking/food preparation 
fumes and smells to a minimum.  The equipment shall be effectively operated and 
maintained for so long as the use continues.  Details of the equipment shall be 
submitted to, and approved by, the Local Planning Authority and the equipment shall 
be installed and be in full working order to the satisfaction of the Local Planning 
Authority prior to the commencement of use.   

Applicants are strongly advised to consult with guidance produced by Department 
for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs "Guidance on the Control of Odour and 
Noise from Commercial Kitchen Exhaust Systems", published January 2005 for 
guidance on minimum requirements for odour control.  Annex B of the guidance 
provides advice on the information required to enable the Local Planning Authority to 
assess the suitability of a ventilation scheme.   

Page 10Page 16



The guidance is available at: 
www.defra.gov.uk/environment/noise/research/kitchenexhaust/pdf/kitchenreport.pdf

17 Prior to the premises being brought into use for the purpose hereby permitted, a 
scheme providing for the adequate storage of refuse from this use shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall be 
carried out prior to the first use of the premises and thereafter retained at all times. 

17 The new access along High Street is to be in accordance, in principle, with the 
drawing numbered MHN/10 Revision E.  This is to include a new bellmouth access 
with 7.5 metre radius kerbs, the extension of the southern footway around the radius 
and into the site, at least as far as the northern footway is shown, with a dropped 
kerb crossing and appropriate tactile paving provided to allow pedestrians access 
into the site and to cross the new access safely. 

19 Immediately the new access is used the existing access shall be permanently 
removed and the footpath reinstated, resurfaced and kerbs reinstated for use in 
accordance with details which shall have been previously submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

20 Prior to commencement of the development details shall be approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority showing the means to prevent the discharge of surface 
water from the development onto the highway.  The approved scheme shall be 
carried out in its entirety before the access is first used and shall be retained at all 
times.

21 No development hereby approved shall take place until measures to enable the 
provision of highway improvements to the local area, necessitated by this 
development, are secured.   

22 Prior to the first occupation of the overnight accommodation unit adjacent to Great 
Stony Park hereby approved the proposed window openings in the south facing 
elevation shall be fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames, and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 

Page 11Page 17



Report Item No: 5

APPLICATION No: EPF/1865/08

SITE ADDRESS: Great Stony Arts and Education Centre 
High Street
Ongar
Essex  
CM5 0AD 

PARISH: Ongar

WARD: Chipping Ongar, Greensted and Marden Ash 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Conservation area consent for the demolition of existing 
outbuildings and small area of single storey rear addition to 
main arts centre building. 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

Page 12Page 18



Report Item No: 6

APPLICATION No: EPF/1959/08

SITE ADDRESS: Millrite Engineering  
151 - 153 London Road 
Stanford Rivers 
Ongar
Essex 
 CM5 

PARISH: Stanford Rivers 

WARD: Passingford 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing five bedroom house and rebuilding in 
different location, retaining store/forge to front and converting 
to two bedroom flat, retaining spray and bedding building and 
conversion to a three bedroom bungalow, retaining two, two 
storey workshops and office building and converting to four, 2 
bedroom flats. 

DECISION: Refuse Permission 

REASON FOR REFUSAL 

1 The site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt.  The proposed replacement dwelling 
represents inappropriate development and is therefore at odds with Government 
advice, as expressed in PPG2, the policies of the adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations and the East of England Plan.  The latter state that within the Green Belt 
permission will not be given, except in very special circumstances for the 
construction of new buildings or for the change of use or extension to existing 
buildings except for the purposes of agriculture, mineral extraction or forestry, small 
scale facilities for outdoor participatory sport and recreation, cemeteries, or similar 
uses which are open in character. 

In the view of the Local Planning Authority the application does not comply with 
these policies as the proposed replacement dwelling is poorly sited, and is materially 
much greater in volume and will have a far greater impact in height and bulk on the 
Green Belt than the dwelling it would replace contrary to policy GB15A of the 
adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

2 The site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt.  The proposed conversion of Building 
No 3 (The spray shop) and Building No 4 (the main workshops) do not meet the 
criteria laid down in policy GB8A of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations, in that 
they (i) are not capable of conversion without major or complete rebuilding, and (ii) 
would have a greater impact on the character and appearance of the Green Belt 
than the existing buildings due to their height, bulk and design. Therefore the 
scheme is contrary to this policy. 

Page 13Page 19



3 The site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt.  The proposed conversion of Building 
No 3 (The spray shop) and Building No 4 (the main workshops) do not meet the 
criteria laid down in policy GB9A of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations in that 
they are modern industrial buildings which are not worthy of retention or suitable for 
conversion, and if such a conversion was allowed would result in an adverse impact 
on the surrounding area.  Therefore the scheme is contrary to this policy. 

4 The proposed replacement dwelling and conversion of Building No 4 (the main 
workshops) are inappropriate within this Green Belt area by reason of their design, 
in that they are excessive in height and width, and are bulky and incongruous in this 
rural area, and the details of the fenestration and brick walls are urban and intrusive, 
contrary to policies DBE1, 2, and 4 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

5 The proposed apartment building (Building No 4 - the main workshops) would have 
an adverse impact on the amenities of the occupants of White Bear Cottage to the 
immediate east, by reason of a loss of sunlight in the afternoon and evening and an 
overbearing visual impact, contrary to policy DBE 9 of the adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations.

6 The scheme makes no provision for any affordable housing provision, contrary to 
policies H6A and H7A of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

7 The scheme will have an adverse impact on the adjacent grade II listed buildings at 
White Bear Cottage and The Woodman Public House by reason of its design and 
siting, due to some of the new buildings' height, proximity and over-dominant non-
traditional proportions, their poor detailing, and the erosion of green space contrary 
to policy HC12 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

8 The site is an isolated site in a rural area. The scheme will promote commuting, as it 
is poorly served by public transport and most access will be by private motor vehicle, 
it will therefore fail to enhance the rural environment. Therefore the proposal does 
not constitute a sustainable development in this rural location, contrary to policies 
CP1, 2, 3, & 9  and ST 4 and 6 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

Page 14Page 20



Report Item No: 7

APPLICATION No: EPF/1997/08

SITE ADDRESS: Old Rectory Farm 
Church Lane 
Stapleford Abbotts 
Romford
Essex 
RM4 1ES 

PARISH: Stapleford Abbotts 

WARD: Passingford 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Conversion of redundant agricultural buildings into 2 
residential units. (Revised application) 

DECISION: Refuse Permission 

REASON FOR REFUSAL 

1 The site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt.  The proposed works represent 
inappropriate development and are therefore at odds with Government advice, as 
expressed in PPG2, the policies of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations.  The 
latter state that within the Green Belt permission will not be given, except in very 
special circumstances for the construction of new buildings or for the change of use 
or extension to existing buildings except for the purposes of agriculture, mineral 
extraction or forestry, small scale facilities for outdoor participatory sport and 
recreation, cemeteries, or similar uses which are open in character.   

In the view of the Local Planning Authority the proposed residential use will result in 
an adverse impact on the openness, character and appearance of the Green Belt, 
and will increase traffic generation.  Furthermore, the applicant has not 
demonstrated why other alternative preferred re-uses are not suitable.  The proposal 
is therefore contrary to Policy GB8A and GB9A of the adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations.

It has also not been proved to the Council's satisfaction that the building is worthy of 
retention and that the site is unsuitable for a business use, contrary to Policy GB9A 
of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

2 The proposed scheme would intensify the use of an access onto a classified road 
where driver to driver sightlines are substandard. This intensification would be 
detrimental to road safety contrary to policy ST4 of the adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations.

Page 15Page 21



3 The increase in vehicular movement will lead to conflict between walkers and users 
of Public Footpath No 4, and will result in a deterioration of the footpath, causing a 
highway hazard contrary to policy ST4 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

4 The site is an isolated site in a rural area. The scheme will promote commuting, as it 
is poorly served by public transport and most access will be by private motor vehicle, 
it will therefore fail to enhance the rural environment. Therefore the proposal does 
not constitute a sustainable development in this rural location, contrary to policies 
CP1, 2, 3, & 9 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

Page 16Page 22



Report Item No: 8

APPLICATION No: EPF/1873/08

SITE ADDRESS: The Old School House 
Coppice Row 
Theydon Bois 
Epping
Essex 
CM16 7DL 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 

WARD: Theydon Bois 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Single storey side extension. 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes, window details, and colours 
and details of the proposed ramp and railings shall be submitted for approval by the 
Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development, 
and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved 
details.

3 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of residents (staff) and visitors vehicles. 

Page 17Page 23



Report Item No: 9

APPLICATION No: EPF/1970/08

SITE ADDRESS: 3 The Weind 
Theydon Bois 
Epping
Essex 
CM16 7HP 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 

WARD: Theydon Bois 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing bungalow and erection of replacement 
two storey detached family house. (Revised application) 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 

CONDITIONS

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 

3 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of 
landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The approved 
scheme shall be implemented within the first planting season following the 
completion of the development hereby approved.  

The scheme must include details of the proposed planting including a plan, details of 
species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a 
timetable for its implementation.  If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to 
thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or 
destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and size and at the 
same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, 
and in writing. 

The statement must include details of all the means by which successful 
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting 
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant 
protection and aftercare.  It must also include details of the supervision of the 
planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority. 

The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and 
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to 
any variation. 

Page 18Page 24



4 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
openings in the first floor flank wall shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and 
have fixed frames to a height of 1.7metres above the floor of the room in which the 
window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 2008 (or any other order revoking, further amending or re-
enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of Part 1, Class A, 
B & C shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the Local Planning 
Authority.

Page 19Page 25



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘EAST’ 

Date 7 January 2009 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 

 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE

1 EPF/0860/08 Wintry Park Service Station, 

37 Thornwood Road, 

Epping 

Grant Permission 

(Subject to S106) 

29 

2 EPF/2191/08 Rockhills Farm, 

Willingale Road, 

Willingale, 

Ongar 

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions) 

41 

3 EPF/2086/08 Brick Works Building, 

Downhall Road, 

Matching Green, 

Harlow 

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions) 

45 

4 EPF/2199/08 Hill Top Farm, 

Toot Hill Road, 

Greensted, 

Ongar 

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions) 

51 

5 EPF/2000/08 The Burrows Lake, 

London Road, 

Stapleford Tawney 

Grant Permission 56 

6 EPF/1584/08 27 Piercing Hill, 

Theydon Bois, 

Epping 

Grant Permission 59 

7 EPF/2137/08 6 Orchard Drive, 

Theydon Bois, 

Epping 

Grant Permission 

(With Conditions) 

64 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0860/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Wintry Park Service Station 

37 Thornwood Road 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 6SY 
 

PARISH: Epping 
 

WARD: Epping Lindsey and Lindsey and Thornwood Common 
 

APPLICANT: Insigniacorp Ltd - Mr P Spencer 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Construction of 13 no. two bedroom flats and 1 no. three 
bedroom flats 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (Subject to S106) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

3 Details of foul and surface water disposal shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority before any work commences and the 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 
 

4 Wheel washing or other cleaning facilities for vehicles leaving the site during 
construction works shall be installed in accordance with details which shall be 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and these 
facilities installed prior to the commencement of any building works on site, and shall 
be used to clean vehicles leaving the site. 
 

5 The method of construction of the car park and foundation shall be agreed in writing 
with the Local Planning Authority. No work shall commence on the car park and 
foundations until such written approval is obtained. Only construction methods in 
accordance with the written approval shall be undertaken unless otherwise 
previously agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Page 29



 
6 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations (which includes deliveries 

and other commercial vehicles to and from the site) which are audible at the 
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no 
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
  

7 Details of the means of controlling dust from the site during the construction of the 
development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority before the site clearance and construction work commences.  The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with such approved details unless 
otherwise previously agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

8 The tree protection fencing shown to be provided in the approved arboricultural 
method statement shall be provided prior to the commencement of the development 
and shall not be moved or removed, temporarily or otherwise, until all works, 
including external works have been completed and all equipment, machinery and 
surplus materials removed from the site.     
 

9 No tree, shrub, or hedge which are shown as being retained on the approved plans 
shall be cut down, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut back in any way or 
removed other than in accordance with the approved plans and particulars, without 
the written approval of the Local Planning Authority.  All tree works approved shall 
be carried out in accordance with British Standard Recommendations for Tree Work 
(B.S.3998: 1989).   
 
If any tree shown to be retained in accordance with the approved plans and 
particulars is removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies, or becomes severely 
damaged or diseased within 3 years of the completion of the development, another 
tree, shrub, or hedge shall be planted at the same place, and that tree, shrub, or 
hedge shall be of such size, specification, and species, and should be planted at 
such time as may be specified in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
 
If within a period of five years from the date of planting any replacement tree is 
removed, uprooted or destroyed, or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective 
another tree of the same species and size as that originally planted shall be planted 
at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation.  
 

10 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a scheme of 
landscaping and a statement of the methods of its implementation have been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. The approved 
scheme shall be implemented within the first planting season following the 
completion of the development hereby approved.  
 
The scheme of landscaping must include details of the proposed planting including a 
plan, details of species, stock sizes and numbers/densities where appropriate, and 
include a timetable for its implementation.  If any plant dies, becomes diseased or 
fails to thrive within a period of 5 years from the date of planting, or is removed, 
uprooted or destroyed, it must be replaced by another plant of the same kind and 
size and at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority agrees to a variation 
beforehand, and in writing. 
 
 

Page 30



The statement of methods of implementing the landscaping scheme must include 
details of all the means by which successful establishment of the scheme will be 
ensured, including preparation of the planting area, planting methods, watering, 
weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant protection and aftercare.  It must 
also include details of the supervision of the planting and liaison with the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 
The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and 
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to 
any variation. 
 

11 Prior to the commencement of the development details shall be approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority showing the means to prevent the discharge of 
surface water from the development onto the highway. The approved scheme shall 
be carried out in its entirety before the access is first used and shall be retained. 
 

12 The development shall not be occupied until the car parking area indicated on the 
approved plans, including any parking spaces for the mobility impaired has been 
hard surfaced, sealed and marked out in parking bays. The car parking area shall be 
retained in this form at all times. The car park shall not be used for any other 
purpose other than the parking of vehicles that are related to the use of the 
development. 
 

13 Prior to commencement of development, including demolition or site clearance 
works, a phased contaminated land investigation shall be undertaken to assess the 
presence of contaminants at the site in accordance with an agreed protocol as 
below.  Should any contaminants be found in unacceptable concentrations, 
appropriate remediation works shall be carried out and a scheme for any necessary 
maintenance works adopted. 
 
Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the 
investigation shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and the 
completed phase 1 investigation shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
upon completion for approval. 
 
Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a 
protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencing the study and the completed phase 2 
investigation with remediation proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority prior to any remediation works being carried out. 
 
Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance 
programme shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to 
first occupation of the completed development. 
 

14 Prior to commencement of development, details of levels shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing the levels of the site prior to 
development and the proposed levels of all ground floor slabs of buildings, roadways 
and accessways and landscaped areas.   The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with those approved details. 
 

15 Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such 
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and 
shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and 
maintained in the agreed positions. 

Page 31



16 A flood risk assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to commencement of development.  The assessment shall include 
calculations of increased run-off and associated volume of storm detention using 
Windes or other similar programme.  The approved measures shall be undertaken 
prior to the first occupation of the building hereby approved and shall be adequately 
maintained in accordance with a management plan to be submitted concurrently 
with the assessment. 
 

17 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the amended plans 
received on 3/11/08 unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Further, it is recommended that the permission be subject to the prior completion of a satisfactory 
Section 106 agreement within 12 months securing the financial contributions requested by Essex 
County Council. Specifically, £30,000 has been requested from the highways department and 
£22,248 has been requested from the schools, children and families directorate. 
 
Description of Proposal:  
  
The applicant seeks planning permission for the construction of 14 flats. 13 with two bedrooms 
and 1 with three bedrooms. 
 
The development is to be split into two separate blocks with each block being two stories in height. 
Both buildings will incorporate a step roof pitch to allow additional room in the roof space to 
accommodate some of the proposed units. The maximum overall height of the buildings to the 
ridge of the roof will be 8.6 metres.   
 
The smaller of the two buildings which is located in the southern corner of the site will comprise a 
building footprint of approximately 195 square metres and will accommodate 4 of the proposed 14 
units.  
 
The larger building is to be located to the north of the smaller building and will have an 
approximate building footprint of 386 square metres and will comprise of 10 units. This building will 
extend close to the rear boundary. 
 
Both buildings will be set back 3 metres from Thornwood Road. The smaller building will be set 
back a minimum distance of 3.5 metres from the southern side boundary whilst the larger building 
will be set back a minimum distance of 0.5 of a metre from the northern boundary. The new 
buildings are to be finished with red brick and timber cladding with a plain tiled roof, similar to 
materials that are found on adjoining properties within the surrounding area.  
 
The development is to provide a new access that is to lead off Thornwood Road and into a car 
park basement. The access will be situated halfway along the frontage of the site between the two 
buildings. The basement car park would provide 28 parking spaces (2 spaces for each unit) and 
cycle storage area. Direct access from the basement to the upper floors is either via stairs or lifts. 
The existing crossover to the southern corner of the site is to be altered slightly to allow access to 
a proposed parking space for the adjoining property (number 27).  
 
The proposed development would have a communal open space area (490sqm) for the 
recreational needs of residents in the south western corner of the site behind the smaller of the 
two buildings. 

Page 32



Description of Site: 
 
The subject site is located on the western side of Thornwood Road approximately 100 metres 
north of Wood Meads on the fringe of Epping. The site is not within the Metropolitan Green Belt, 
however the Green Belt boundary runs along the northern edge.  
 
The site itself is mainly regular in shape and has a moderate slope that falls from the front of the 
property towards the rear. The overall size of the site is approximately 1500 square metres.  
The site is currently vacant however it was once used as a service station which comprised of a 
single storey building to the northern part of the site and a canopy to refuel beneath. 
 
Currently located on the boundaries of the site are timber paling and wire fences varying in height. 
There is a small tree located towards the south eastern corner of the site and there are some 
mature trees located on the boundaries of adjoining properties. 
 
Located to the south and west of the site there are a mixture of buildings that vary in scale, form 
and size ranging from detached, semi detached and terrace style dwellings. Dwellings located 
south of the site have consistent front setbacks from Thornwood Road. Located to the east of the 
property on the opposite side of Thornwood Road is part of Epping Forest which is a site of 
Special Scientific Interest. The surrounding area to the north and east of the site are located within 
the Metropolitan Green Belt.  
 
 Relevant History: 
 
There have been a number of planning applications submitted to Council over the years however 
the most relevant application in relation to the proposed development is as follows: 
 
EPF/2032/06 – Construction of 11 no. two bedroom, 2 no. three bedroom and 1 no. four bedroom 
dwellings.  
 
The above application was refused on the basis that it failed to demonstrate the measures to make 
the building sustainable, inappropriate design and appearance, be harmful to the Green Belt and 
would be harmful to the amenities of adjoining property amenities.    
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2 Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment. 
CP3 New Development 
CP4 Energy conservation 
CP5 Sustainable Building 
CP7 Urban Form and Quality 
CP9 Sustainable Transport 
DBE1 Design of New Buildings 
DBE2 Effect on Adjoining Properties 
DBE3 Design in Urban Areas 
DBE8 Private Amenity Space 
DBE9 Loss of Amenity 
LL10 Adequacy of provision for landscape retention. 
LL11 Landscaping Schemes 
ST1 Location of development. 
ST2 Accessibility of development. 
ST4 Road safety. 
H1A Housing Provision 
H3A Housing Density 
H4A Dwelling Mix 

Page 33



ST6 Vehicle Parking. 
GB7A Conspicuous Development 
NC1 SPAs, SACs and SSSIs 
HC5 Epping Forest 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to be addressed regarding the proposed development and use are as follows: 
 

• Whether the site is in a sustainable location for this type of development and use. 
• Whether the design and appearance is acceptable 
• Whether there would be any traffic and parking concerns caused by the development  
• Whether there are any impacts to the openness of the Green Belt 
• Whether the landscaping is acceptable.  
• Whether there are any impacts on the Site of Special Scientific Interest.  
• Whether there would be any effects to the amenities of adjoining properties. 

 
Sustainability:  
 
In considering planning applications for a new development, the Council will require that the 
development can be accommodated within the existing infrastructure capacity of the area, that it 
would be accessible by existing sustainable means of transport, that the scale and nature of the 
development is consistent with the principles of sustainability and that it respects the character of 
the environment. 
 
One of the reasons why the previous application was refused was that the proposed scheme failed 
to demonstrate that measures had been adopted to make the building sustainable to meet the 
requirements of policies CP4 and CP5. 
 
The applicant has now provided Council with a sustainability statement that demonstrates the 
building is to be of a sustainable construction in relation to materials, waste disposal and making 
the most of existing and natural resources.  
 
Although the site is on the fringe of Epping, it still has good access to relevant infrastructure such 
as sewage and drainage and is close to shops and facilities, with good access to public transport 
links.   
 
Officer opinion is that the proposed development would be of a sustainable construction, energy 
efficient and would be located in a suitable and sustainable location that will maintain and 
conserve the urban environment. The proposed development now meets Policies CP4 and CP5 of 
the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 
Design and appearance: 
 
Policies DBE1, DBE2 and DBE3 of the adopted Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 
seeks to ensure that a new development is satisfactorily located and is of a high standard of 
design and layout. Furthermore, the appearance of new developments should be compatible with 
the character of the surrounding area, and would not prejudice the environment of occupiers of 
adjoining properties.  
 
It should be noted that one of the reasons why the previous application (EPF/2032/06) was 
refused, was that the development’s scale, bulk and massing was out of character with the 
surrounding area and would cause a harmful impact to the streetscene. 
 

Page 34



The main difference between the previous application that was refused and the proposed 
application is that the development has now been split into two building blocks whereas before it 
was proposed to be one building.   
 
Dwellings in the area range from single to double fronted facades, with many dwellings 
incorporating a porch, decorative details and a mixture of materials to provide articulation. The 
proposed scheme is better articulated than the previous scheme as each facade of the 
development has now been designed in a way to create visual interest when viewed from public 
vantage points such as Thornwood Road. 
 
New buildings should be consistent with the overall shape and form of those dwellings which are 
predominant in the street and general neighbourhood. As mentioned above there is a mixture of 
single and two storey dwellings within the surrounding area. In this case, the shape and form of 
the proposed development is acceptable and it will be no higher than the ridgeline of the adjoining 
semi detached dwelling to the south of the site. It is noted that the overall height of the 
development will be slightly higher than the adjoining dwellings to the west of the site. This is due 
to the slope of the land but, notwithstanding the change in levels, the eaves height of the 
development is approximately the same as the eaves height of the adjoining dwellings to the west. 
Therefore it is considered that the proposed development will not be visually intrusive or appear as 
a dominant feature when viewed from adjoining properties. 
 
Given that the development has now been split into two buildings, it is considered that the bulk and 
scale of the development is acceptable. It will not cause material detriment to the area and it will 
not appear as an overdevelopment. The proposed development would blend in and reflect the 
streetscene.   
 
In relation to the siting of the development, it is required to conform to the existing street pattern 
and have little deviation from the general building line. It is considered that the proposed 
development integrates well into the street scene in terms of siting as it will be setback the same 
distance from Thornwood Road as the adjoining dwellings. The spaces/gaps between the 
proposed development and adjoining properties, in particular number 27 Thornwood Road is 
considered to be appropriate as it will reflect the general patterns found within the streetscene. 
 
Residential amenity space: 
 
Policy DBE8 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations states that in respect to 
communal areas, at least 25 square metres of open space for each unit is required. Given that 
there are 14 units proposed within the development, a minimum of 350 square metres of 
communal space is required. 490 square metres has been provided for a communal area within 
the site. This is considered to be more then enough to meet the recreational needs of future 
residents and it should also be noted that there are also public green spaces within the 
surrounding area. 
 
Highway and parking considerations: 
 
Policy ST6 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations states that the Council will 
ensure that all new developments make adequate provisions for car parking normally in 
accordance with the adopted standards.  
 
The proposed development has allowed for 2 vehicle spaces per unit and room for cycle storage.  
This meets the adopted standards and is considered to meet the needs for future residents.  
 
It is considered that there would not be any adverse impacts to highway safety or traffic 
congestion. Vehicles will be able to effectively and efficiently enter and exit the site in a safe 
manner. 

Page 35



 
The application was referred to Essex County Council’s Highways officer who advised that they 
had no objection to the proposed development subject to the securing of financial contribution of 
£30,000 to improve highway safety and maintenance within the area. The money would be used to 
construct tactile crossings on the footway into Epping from the site, bus stop upgrades north & 
south of the site and lantern upgrades along Thornwood Road past the site.  
 
Housing density and mix 
 
Policy H3A states that new housing developments will achieve a net density of at least 30-50 
dwellings per hectare.  
 
In areas where there are good transport links and other facilities, it is expected that higher 
densities should be achieved. The development proposes 93dph. This is considered to be 
appropriate as the development has provided sufficient room for adequate communal areas and 
parking spaces within the site to meet the needs of the residents. The site is also located within 
the town boundary of Epping and there are good transport connections running along Thornwood 
Road. 
 
New housing developments should cater for the needs of the population and play a role in creating 
a mixed and balanced community. Policy H4A requires that new housing developments make 
provision for a range of dwelling sizes and a mixture of both marketable housing and affordable 
housing. The proposed mix is 13 two bedroom units and 1 three bedroom unit within the 
development. There is an imbalance of smaller and larger units, but according to Council Housing 
Needs Survey, in the Epping area, there is not such an imbalance of supply and demand. As the 
previous refusal was not on these grounds, officers do not feel there is justification to raise these 
issues now. 
 
In this case the provision for affordable housing is not required as the development proposes less 
than 15 units and the site is less than half a hectare. However, a different mix of unit sizes is likely 
to have resulted in a development of at least 15 units, thereby triggering the policy requirement to 
secure affordable housing in connection with this development. In the circumstances, Members 
may be of the opinion that there is some justification for seeking a financial contribution towards 
affordable housing in the area. However, it is not clear what an appropriate level of contribution 
would be.  If members wish to seek such a contribution in this case, it would be appropriate for a 
decision on this application to be deferred to allow negotiations with the applicant to take place. 
 
Green Belt: 
 
Although the subject site is not within the Metropolitan Green Belt, the surrounding land to the 
north and east falls within it.  
 
Policy GB7A states that the Council will refuse planning permission for a development 
conspicuous from within or beyond the Green Belt which would have an excessive adverse impact 
upon the openness, rural character or visual amenities of the Green Belt.  
 
It should be noted that another reason why Council refused the previous application 
(EPF/2032/06) was that it was considered that the proposed development would be conspicuous 
and hence detract from the character, appearance and openness of the Green Belt.  
 
The bulk, massing and scale of the proposed development when viewed from the north and east 
has been reduced from the previous scheme, and it is now considered that the development would 
not be visually intrusive or dominant in relation to the surrounding area. Therefore it will not be 
harmful to the openness, character and the appearance of the surrounding Green Belt.  
 

Page 36



Site of Special Scientific Interest:  
 
A site of special scientific interest is located adjacent to the site to the east. It is important to make 
sure that any development or the change of use to land that is either within a SSSI or located in 
close proximity to one would not directly or indirectly destroy or adversely affect a SSSI.  It is a 
requirement for Council to consult Natural England about the proposed development. Natural 
England had no objections to the proposed development as it was considered it would not 
adversely affect any known protected species and that the atmospheric pollution caused by traffic 
generated was too minor to warrant any reason for refusal. 
 
Given the advice from Natural England it is considered that the proposed development will not 
cause an adverse impact to the adjacent SSSI.  
 
Landscaping: 
 
Although the applicant has suggested that there are no trees located on the site, it appears that 
there is one ash tree adjacent to number 27 and maybe a couple more trees in the north western 
corner are located within the site. There are also three mature trees located close to the western 
rear boundary on the adjoining property and a number of mature trees located along the northern 
side boundary on the adjoining land.  
 
Although these trees are not preserved in anyway, there were initially concerns whether or not the 
proposed development would have an impact to the root system of these trees that could 
potentially mean that they would die or would need to be removed once the development was 
completed.    
 
Further information including a tree report, locations assessment and an arboricultural method 
statement were submitted to the Council to address these concerns. This information was passed 
on to the Council landscape officer who advised that the development would occur outside the root 
protection areas of the trees on and beyond the site boundaries and that it had been demonstrated 
that they can be protected adequately during the development process.  
 
The Council landscape officer also advised that the implementation of new landscaping will help to 
soften the appearance of the buildings and will help blend the development into the surrounding 
environment. 
 
Education contribution:  
 
Essex County Council has estimated that this development, if approved, will result in two primary 
school places being required. Therefore it is requested that a developer contribution be paid prior 
to the commencement of works to the sum of £22,248 which has been calculated using the April 
2008 cost multipliers. This can be required via a legal agreement under Section 106 of the Town 
and Country Planning Act.   
 
Impacts to adjoining properties: 
 
Consideration has been given to the impact of the proposal to the adjoining and adjacent 
properties, primarily in respect to privacy and overshadowing. 
 
Given the orientation of the site and the siting of dwellings, overshadowing to the adjoining 
properties’ private open space is minor, with the shadow generally cast over the subject site itself. 
It is noted that the development will cast a partial shadow over adjoining properties; however, 
adequate sunlight and daylight will still be received to secluded open space areas and to habitable 
rooms of the adjoining properties throughout the day.  
 

Page 37



It is noted that there are first and second floor windows proposed within the development, however 
there are significant distances between building blocks as not to cause direct overlooking into 
habitable room windows of adjoining properties. It is noted that there would be some minor 
overlooking into private open space areas of adjoining properties however not significant enough 
to warrant a reason for refusal. 
 
It is also considered that the proposed development would not be detrimental in terms of noise or 
disturbance and that it would not cause an overbearing impact when viewed from rear gardens of 
habitable rooms of adjoining properties. 
 
It should be remembered that this site was not an open site but was occupied by a busy petrol 
sales garage with an unattractive canopy and signage. The previous use is considered to be more 
harmful to the amenities of adjoining properties than the proposed development. 
 
Other issues: 
 
The applicant indicates that the foul sewage would be discharged into the main system. Council’s 
Environmental officer stated that discharge of foul sewage into the main system would be the most 
appropriate method and that the site should not be served by a private sewer as it will not be able 
to cope with the increase in demand caused by a further 14 units. This matter can be delt with by 
imposing a condition on any permission requiring approval for drainage of foul and surface water 
before any works commence and that the proposed development is carried out in accordance with 
those details. 
 
In relation to protecting the amenities of adjoining occupiers during construction of the 
development if approved, conditions would be placed on any consent to safeguard amenity during 
construction. This would include restricting the hours in which construction can take place and 
taking steps to minimise dust emissions.  
 
In relation to refuse collection, it is considered that there would not be an impact in relation to 
traffic congestion along Thornwood Road. It is noted that a refuse vehicle would most likely have 
to back into the site to access the bin store located at the front of the site blocking the access for a 
couple of minutes a week or even fortnightly. However in saying this, this happens to the majority 
of streets within the Council on collection day. Moreover, since refuse collection is a relatively 
infrequent activity of very limited duration, it would not have a material impact on the safe and free 
flow of traffic on adjacent roads. 
 
Conclusion:  
 
In conclusion it is considered that the design and appearance of the development is acceptable in 
terms of its scale, bulk siting and massing in that it would reflect and blend into the character of the 
surrounding area without causing material detriment. It will not cause harm to the green belt or to 
the amenities of adjoining property occupiers and the development is considered to be of a 
sustainable construction that will provide a more positive entrance into Epping than the previous 
development. 
 
Therefore it is recommended that the application be approved subject to conditions. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
EPPING TOWN COUNCIL: Committee objects to the application for the following reason: 
 
Committee wished to transmit a balanced view to the District Council on this matter. Overall, 
committee feel that the design has many positive features and is generally a good approach to this 
development site. However, Committee had significant concerns that, on the western side of the 

Page 38



site, the height and close proximity of development will be overbearing and very detrimental to the 
amenities of existing properties. Committee feels strongly that this feature of the design should be 
rethought.  
 
NEIGHBOURS:  7 letters of objection were received from the following addresses: 
 

• 6 Brickfield Cottages 
• 29 Thornwood Road 
• Wintry Park House 
• 37a Thornwood Road 
• 45 Thornwood Road 
• 15 Holmefield Close 
• 27 Thornwood Road 

  
Their main concerns are as follows: 
 

• The proposed development is out of character to the surrounding area in terms of its size, 
scale and bulk. 

• The proposed development is excessive and an overdevelopment. 
• The proposed development will be visually intrusive and overbearing. 
• The proposed development will generate more traffic and hence cause traffic congestion 

and have an impact to highway safety. 
• The proposed development would result in additional parking problems along Thornwood 

Road. 
• The proposed development will result in a loss of light and privacy to adjoining properties. 
• The proposed development would have an impact to the existing drainage and the existing 

water table in the area. 
• The proposed development would cause noise and disturbance during construction. 
• The proposed development would be an overdevelopment of the site. 
• The proposed development is conspicuous towards the Metropolitan Green Belt. 
• Inaccurate information submitted on the application form and on plans. 
• Problems in relation to refuse collection. 
• The proposed development would have an impact to surrounding vegetation 
• The proposed development would have an impact to existing wildlife and the site of special 

scientific interest.  
• The proposed development is not sustainable  

 

 
 
 

Page 39



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

113.1m

111.3m

109.7m

SR

SR

De
f

SR

y

21

1

W
intry Park

2

Farm
 Cottages

23

47

10

29

9

27

39

El Sub Sta

37a

Oaklands

Wintry Park House

Forest
House

Park Farm

48

46

44

Shelter

El Sub Sta

Shelter

Wintry Wood
Smallholding

Kids
Unlimited
Nurseries

Birch View

7

Forest
Lodge

1

11

15

17

58

34

56

32

1

New

The

Coach House

Cott

21

House

Studio

3b

Lendall

18

11

8

5b

1

3
3a

5a

1

7

9

E

pp

The L

Path
 (u

m)

Path (um
)

Gardens

Allotment

TCB

LB

Epping Plain

The Lower Forest

Epping Forest

EGG HA

B 
13

93

TH
O

RN
W

O
O

D 
RO

AD

THE
PLAIN

TH
O

RN
W

O
O

D 
RO

AD

B 181

WOOD MEADS

B 
13

93

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 

Application Number: EPF/0860/08 

Site Name: Wintry Park Service Station, 37 Thornwood 
Road, Epping, CM16 6SY 

Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 40



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2191/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Rockhills Farm 

Willingale Road 
Willingale 
Ongar 
Essex 
 

PARISH: High Ongar 
 

WARD: High Ongar, Willingale and the Rodings 
 

APPLICANT: Premier Plants UK 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Siting of portacabin for temporary (3 year) period to provide 
secure storage facility in connection with existing horticultural 
operation. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 This consent shall inure for a limited period expiring three years from the date of this 
Notice, at which time the portacabin shall be removed and the site reinstated. 
 

2 No external lighting shall be affixed to the portacabin hereby allowed 
 

 
This application is before this Committee as the recommendation is anticipated to differ from the 
views of Willingale Parish Council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s 
Delegated Functions) 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Siting of a portacabin for temporary (3 year) period to provide secure storage in connection with 
existing horticultural operations (Retrospective application).  
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site is an area of agricultural land on the west side of Willingale Road. It has 
recently been developed as a horticultural site. The site lays west and north of the residential 
properties 1 and 2 Rockhill Cottages. The site and surrounding land is open in character and falls 
within the Metropolitan Green Belt.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/0185/07 ‘Erection of two polytunnels, two shade frames, one timber office and a potting shed 

for horticultural operation and alterations to access’  Withdrawn. 
EPF/1140/07 ‘Erection of polytunnels, shade frame, sales office and associated   works including 

the formation of a new access, in respect of a horticultural operation’ 
 Withdrawn. 

Page 41



EPF/1601/07 ‘Erection of polytunnels, shade frame, sales office and associated works including 
the formation of a new access, in respect of a horticultural operation’  Granted 

EPF/1251/08 Excavation of a reservoir Granted 
EPF/1576/08 Two polytunnels  Granted 
 
Policies Applied:  
 
GB2A  Green Belt Policy 
DBE 9 Neighbour amenity 
LL1    Landscaping 
U2  Flooding 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues are the impact of this proposal on the Green Belt, and the amenities of the area. 
 
Whilst it is to be regretted that this portacabin is already in situ, the application must be dealt with 
on its own merits.  
 
Green Belt  
- This proposal falls under policy GB2 (i)  & GB11, in that the building is required for the 

purposes of agriculture. It is the case that this portacabin is already in situ and used as part of 
an ongoing horticultural use of the site. 

- It is positioned near the northern edge of the site between the office building and a water tank. 
- The site is bounded by a planting scheme and fence, both of which have been implemented 

under the conditions of the original scheme. The planting scheme is sparse at this time as it 
has only just been planted, but will grow in time to provide significant screening.  

- With this screening and siting of the portacabin it is the case that from most angles it will be 
viewed against a background of other structures on the site and the overall impact will be 
minimal.   

- Although of a utilitarian design, the portacabin is a typical modern structure often found on 
horticultural enterprises and will integrate acceptably with the existing buildings and structures 
on the site, and is appropriate to the permitted use of the site.  

- It is coloured light green which further reduces its impact. 
- However, due to its design and appearance it is unlikely that the Council would wish to renew 

a temporary permission and would expect to see a proper building erected on the site to 
replace it as the permission expires.  

- Therefore It is considered that the proposal is will not have an adverse impact on the openness 
and character of the Green Belt on this site.  

 
Neighbour Amenity 
- The only neighbouring properties that will be affected are 1 and 2 Rockhill Cottages to the 

south of the site.  
- The site already has screening in situ as explained above, and it is a minimum of 180m from 

these dwellings.  
 

Conclusion 
 
For the reasons outlined above the proposal for the stationing of a portacabin for 3 years is 
acceptable subject to the conditions recommended. The application is therefore recommended for 
approval. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
HIGH ONGAR PARISH COUNCIL – No comment 

Page 42



 
WILLINGALE PARISH COUNCIL – No response received at time of completing report but 
objection anticipated.  Any subsequent response received will be reported verbally. 
 
NEIGHBOURS – No response received. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 

Application Number: EPF/2191/08 

Site Name: Rockhills Farm, Willingale Road 
Willingale, CM4 0LN 

Scale of Plot: 1/7500

Page 44



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2086/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Brick Works Building 

Downhall Road 
Matching Green 
Harlow 
Essex 
 

PARISH: Matching 
 

WARD: Hastingwood, Matching and Sheering Village 
 

APPLICANT: Mr D Perry 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use of a former gas works building to short term 
holiday lets accommodation. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposal, shall match those of 
the existing building. 
 

3 The roof shall be covered with dark blue/black welsh slates with matching hips and 
ridges, and samples shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior to any 
work commencing.  
 

4 All external joinery shall be carried out in timber and finished with a traditional paint 
finish.  
 

5 Prior to the commencement of the development details of the proposed surface 
materials for the access way and patio shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority.  The agreed surface treatment shall be completed 
prior to the first occupation of the development. 
 

6 Prior to the commencement of development details of any screen walls, fences or 
such similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

7 No development shall take place until the applicant has secured the implementation 
of a programme of archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of 
investigation which has been submitted by the applicant and approved by the 
Planning Authority. 
 

8 Prior to commencement of development the width of the access at the junction with 
the highway shall be not less than 3.6m and retained at that width for 6m within the 
site. 

Page 45



9 Prior to commencement of development, including demolition or site clearance 
works, a phased contaminated land investigation shall be undertaken to assess the 
presence of contaminants at the site in accordance with an agreed protocol as 
below.  Should any contaminants be found in unacceptable concentrations, 
appropriate remediation works shall be carried out and a scheme for any necessary 
maintenance works adopted. 
 
Prior to carrying out a phase 1 preliminary investigation, a protocol for the 
investigation shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and the 
completed phase 1 investigation shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority 
upon completion for approval. 
 
Should a phase 2 main site investigation and risk assessment be necessary, a 
protocol for this investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencing the study and the completed phase 2 
investigation with remediation proposals shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority prior to any remediation works being carried out. 
 
Following remediation, a completion report and any necessary maintenance 
programme shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval prior to 
first occupation of the completed development. 
 

10 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) have 
been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and these 
works shall be carried out as approved.  These details shall include, as appropriate, 
and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed finished levels 
or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other vehicle artefacts and 
structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above and below 
ground.  Details of soft landscape works shall include plans for planting or 
establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules of plants, 
including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers / densities where appropriate.  
If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any 
tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, 
uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another 
tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall 
be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. 
 

11 No development shall take place until there has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority, a plan indicating the existing hedge or 
hedges which are to be retained, the minimum heights at which they will be 
maintained and appropriate trees within the hedge or hedges which shall be retained 
and allowed to grow on.  The plan shall also show where the hedgerows are to be 
reinforced with further planting, details of which indicated in a timetable of 
implementation.  The hedges shall thereafter be maintained in accordance with the 
approved details. 
 

12 Prior to commencement of development details of the proposed energy 
saving/generating devices shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 
 

13 External lighting shall not be erected within the site without the prior written approval 
of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Page 46



14 Gates shall not be erected on the vehicular access to the site without the prior 
written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

15 The building comprising the development hereby permitted shall not be occupied 
other than as short term holiday accommodation and shall only be occupied by any 
one party for a period not exceeding 28 days in any calendar year.  
 

 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application for non-householder 
development and the recommendation differs from more than one expression of objection 
(Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (f) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Change of use of a former gas works buildings to short term holiday lets accommodation, including 
a 2.1m wide extension to the existing lean to and repair and reinstatement as necessary. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The building is an early example of ‘no fines’ concrete and was originally built to supply gas to 
Down Hall which is located some 350m to the north.  The building is located some 160m from 
Down Hall Road in the north-west corner of a field which is bordered by a ditch/stream to the north 
and hedging/vegetation to the remaining boundaries.  The building is in a poor condition and is not 
watertight; however it has not deteriorated greatly since the previous 2005 application.  The whole 
site is within the Metropolitan Green Belt, and surrounded by open fields.   
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1359/90 - Alterations, conversion and extension of gas works to dwelling – Dismissed at 
Appeal 
EPF/1135/97 - Renovation of existing building and conversion to business use (Class B1) – 
Approved (Not implemented) 
EPF/0435/05 - Renovation of existing building, and change of use to office and store – Approved 
(Not implemented but still extant) 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
GB8A – Change of Use or Adaptation of Buildings 
DBE9 – Loss of Amenity 
ST4 – Road Safety 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues that arise with this application are considered to be the following: 
 

• Impact on the Metropolitan Green Belt 
• Impact on Amenity 
• Highway Issues 
• Other Matters 

 
 
 

Page 47



Impact on the Metropolitan Green Belt 
 
Policy GB8A of the Local Plan and Alterations allows the change of use of buildings within the 
Metropolitan Green Belt subject to certain criteria including capability of conversion.  The 
application site has an existing permission for change of use to office and store, which involved no 
extension to the building.  This previous permission EPF/0435/05 for office use has established 
that the building is capable of an appropriate conversion.  Although this current application also 
includes an extension to the existing lean-to it is a small extension (4.4m2) which complies with 
Policy GB8A as it is a modest addition in keeping with the form of the existing building.   
 
Although new residential development within the Green Belt is not deemed an appropriate use, 
this proposal is for short term holiday accommodation, not for permanent residential use and 
Policy GB8A specifically cites Tourism as a preference for the conversion of buildings within the 
Green Belt.    
 
Policy GB8A also refers to the need for sustainable design and construction techniques 
specifically referring to Policy CP4 (Energy Conservation).  As this is an existing building 
sustainable construction techniques may not be applicable but energy saving devices could be 
incorporated and could be conditioned as such. 
 
As this is not a residential conversion there is no residential curtilage as such proposed with this 
application.  It is proposed that the meadow to the front of the site will be retained, with the 
vehicular access created along the southern boundary leading to 2 parking spaces and a patio 
area (25m2) immediately adjacent to the building.  The principle of the access and parking spaces 
has already been approved with the earlier 2005 application, and the extra addition of the patio will 
not harm the openness and character of the Green Belt, as again it can be conditioned that a 
suitably unobtrusive material is used.    
 
Impact on Amenity 
 
The building is situated in a rural location, not visible from the road, with the nearest property some 
180m away across the road.  This proposal will have little impact on surrounding amenity given its 
small scale and isolated position.   
 
Highways Issues 
 
Given the small scale use of the building the proposal will not produce a significant rise in highway 
movements to that of the previously approved office/store.  Subject to conditions regarding the 
width of the access and surface finish of the driveway Essex County Council Highways has no 
objection to this scheme.   
 
Other matters 
 
• Ecology 

The application was accompanied by a Bat Assessment which found no evidence of bats 
within the building and Natural England were consulted as part of the application process and 
has no objection to the proposal subject to a condition regarding external lighting to protect bat 
flight lines.   

 
• Historic Value.  

Although this building is not Listed or on the Local List it has an historic connection with the 
Grade II* Listed Down Hall, and is, as stated above, an early example of ‘no fines’ concrete.   
Although a secondary matter the sympathetic conversion and remediation of this building to an 
appropriate use within the Green Belt will help to preserve this unusual building. 

 

Page 48



Conclusion: 
 
The proposal does not have a significant impact upon the character and openness of the 
Metropolitan Green Belt in this location given the small scale nature of the development proposed.  
It is also considered that the use for holiday accommodation is acceptable within the Green Belt, 
as it is considered as a tourism use which aims to promote a living and working countryside.  
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
PARISH COUNCIL: No objection 
 
NEIGHBOURS:   
 
1 Bridge Hall Cottages – Object – Inappropriate for the area and would require considerable 
development as there are no services or access road 
 
Matching Hall Farm – Object – Considerable noise and disturbance by constant movement of 
people.  A rebuild on this site would be like granting planning permission for a new unit. Concern 
about access to Downhall Road. There is a dangerous section of narrow road over the ditch near 
to Bridge Cottages.   
 
 
 
 

Page 49



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

3 

Application Number: EPF/2086/08 

Site Name: Brick Works Building, Downhall Road 
Matching Green,  

Scale of Plot: 1/5000 

Page 50



 Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2199/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Hill Top Farm 

Toot Hill Road 
Greensted 
Ongar 
Essex 
CM5 9LJ 
 

PARISH: Stanford Rivers 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Stephen Hopps 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Amendments to EPF/0660/07 regarding location and 
configuration of ancillary structures and proposed external 
lights. (Resubmitted application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Details of the types and colours of the external finishes shall be submitted for 
approval by the Local Planning Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the 
development, and the development shall be implemented in accordance with such 
approved details. 
 

3 Prior to the commencement of development details of screen walls, fences or such 
similar structures shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and 
shall be erected before the occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved and 
maintained in the agreed positions. 
 

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 2, Class A - E shall be undertaken without the prior written permission of the 
Local Planning Authority. 
 

5 The development, including site clearance, must not commence until a tree 
protection plan, to include all the relevant details of tree protection has been 
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. 
 
The statement must include a plan showing the area to be protected and fencing in 
accordance with the relevant British Standard (Trees in Relation to Construction-
Recommendations; BS.5837:2005).  It must also specify any other means needed to 
ensure that all of the trees to be retained will not be harmed during the development, 
including by damage to their root system, directly or indirectly. 

Page 51



 
The statement must explain how the protection will be implemented, including 
responsibility for site supervision, control and liaison with the LPA. 
  
The trees must be protected in accordance with the agreed statement throughout 
the period of development, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior 
written consent to any variation. 
 

6 Within 1 month of the grant of permission a scheme of landscaping and a statement 
of the methods of its implementation have been submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority and approved in writing. The approved scheme shall be implemented 
within the first planting season following the completion of the development hereby 
approved.  
 
The scheme must include details of the hard and soft landscaping and surface 
materials proposed planting including a plan, details of species, stock sizes and 
numbers/densities where appropriate, and include a timetable for its implementation.  
If any plant dies, becomes diseased or fails to thrive within a period of 5 years from 
the date of planting, or is removed, uprooted or destroyed, it must be replaced by 
another plant of the same kind and size and at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority agrees to a variation beforehand, and in writing. 
 
The statement must include details of all the means by which successful 
establishment of the scheme will be ensured, including preparation of the planting 
area, planting methods, watering, weeding, mulching, use of stakes and ties, plant 
protection and aftercare.  It must also include details of the supervision of the 
planting and liaison with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
The landscaping must be carried out in accordance with the agreed scheme and 
statement, unless the Local Planning Authority has given its prior written consent to 
any variation. 
 

7 No further external lighting shall be installed on the residence, stables or garage 
without the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

8 The remaining 3 bays of the converted barns and all hardstanding areas shown on 
the plans as being removed, shall be demolished and removed from the site within  
12 months of the grant of this permission. 
 

 
This application is before this Committee since it has been ‘called in’ by Councillor Mrs Collins 
(Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (h) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of proposal: 
 
Amendments to EPF/0660/07 regarding location and configuration of ancillary structures and 
proposed external lights (resubmitted application).  
 
The scheme will see a double carport, boiler shed and oil tank erected on the southwest of the 
site, next to a new singe garage, all structures being adjacent to the converted barn.  Part of a 
former stable block to the east of the dwelling will now be retained as a curtilage ancillary building. 
A small shed would be erected in the southeast corner of the garage.  
 
These structures would replace the approved triple carport and ‘L’ shaped stable block, both of 
which would have been erected on the northern boundary.  

Page 52



Description of Site: 
 
The site is on the eastern side of Toot Hill Road, and consists of a converted stable block and a 
Grade II listed barn (which is being converted to a dwelling under a 1993 permission) on either 
side of the entrance road, and a converted barn at the rear of the site which is now a dwelling. 
There is extensive hard standing and bunding behind this building which will be removed as part of 
the landscaping of the site.  
 
The whole site is within the Green Belt and has residential properties to the north and south. This 
site is part of a ribbon of residential development to the north of the main village envelope. The 
ground slopes down to the east, and the land is open and rolling on this boundary.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
An extensive history: 
EPF/0893/93 Conversion of barn and stables to 2 dwellings  approved 
EPF/0810/95 Temporary stationing of caravan    approved 
EPF/1196/96 Retention of caravan      approved 
EPF/0660/07 Demolition of farm buildings and conversion of barn to dwelling approved 
EPF/1297/08 Amendments to EPF/0660/07    withdrawn 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
GB2A Green Belt 
GB8A   Change of use of Buildings 
GB9A   Residential Conversions 
DBE 9   Excessive Loss of amenities for neighbours 
HC12   Setting of Listed Buildings 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues in this application are the effect of the proposal on the Green Belt, adjacent Listed 
Building and Neighbours’ amenities. 
 
This site has been subject to Enforcement Enquiries regarding land raising, contaminated land and 
non-implementation of condition issues. To date enforcement enquiries have found no breaches in 
respect of land raising and contamination matters. However, there have been issues with 
conditions not being discharged prior to the commencement of work on the site: 
 
1.  Drainage – now discharged 
2.  Landscaping – awaiting a further revised scheme after discussions with Council Landscape 

Officers 
3.  Surface Materials – awaiting a revised landscape scheme, materials agreed in principle 
4.  Fencing - awaiting a revised landscape scheme, positioning, height and type agreed in 

principle 
5.  Non Demolition of 3 bays of the original barn – these have been retained as a temporary 

measure by the applicant for the storage of materials on the site whilst works are in 
progress. 

 
The applicant has accepted that he should have contacted the Council to get permission to retain 
the 3 bays, and has apologised for not resolving the landscaping issues prior to the 
commencement of work, stating that the landscaping was dependent on the repositioning of the 
outbuildings due to changes in their location required by recently discovered covenant issues. 
However, a scheme has been submitted and whilst revisions are required the plans form an 
acceptable basis to work towards a formal discharge.   

Page 53



 
It is the case that none of these matters directly impact on the assessment of the suitability of this 
scheme, and whilst it is regretted that these matters were not dealt with before works commenced 
it is the case that the scheme must be assessed on its own merits.  
 
Green Belt 
- The scheme will see no increase in the area of new built form on the site; rather there will be a 

reduction of about 20m² from the previous new built stables and car port, and the resiting of 
the structures will result in a much improved impact on the openness of the Green Belt due to 
most of the new buildings (with the exception of the garden shed) being in the southwest 
corner of the site where they are effectively screened behind the main dwelling and are about 
2m below the level of the rear garden of the neighbouring property.  

- It is the case that there will be an overall small increase in floor area of buildings on the site of 
40m² due to the retention of a third of the old stables to the east of the building. However, this 
block, which is in situ, is seen from the Green Belt against the back drop of the main dwelling, 
tree lines and hedgerows, and the upwards slope of the land.  

- The retention of the stables is also in line with policy GB8A and GB9A.  
- The outbuildings are considered not to be excessive on a site of this type and size.  
- The external lights have been reduced in number from the previous scheme and are designed 

to provide an appropriate level of external lighting without having an excessive impact on the 
area during the hours of darkness.  

- Therefore it is considered that there is no harm caused to the openness, character and 
appearance of the Green Belt by this revised scheme.  

 
Listed Building 
- The Council’s Listed Building Advisor has raised no objections to the scheme subject to the 

appropriate conditions. 
 

Neighbour Amenity 
- The buildings would be moved from the boundary with Hill Top Farm to the north. 
- Although they would be close to the boundary with Wealdstead to the west they are at a lower 

level due to the removal of the previous bunding in this area. Furthermore, they are screened 
by fencing while the dwellinghouse at Wealdstead is some 70m distant.  

- It is considered that there would be no loss of amenity to any neighbour as a result of the 
scheme.  
 

Design  
- The proposed buildings are of a traditional rural design, which integrates well with the existing 

listed building to the east and the new dwelling, and are appropriate in this rural area. The 
materials can be conditioned.  

 
Conclusion: 
 
This scheme will enhance the openness and rural character of the Green Belt and the Listed 
Building by moving the previously approved outbuildings into a very screened position. The 
retention of part of the stables will not have an adverse effect on the Green Belt. Whilst there are 
still condition issues to be resolved from the previous permission the applicant is making sustained 
and genuine efforts to overcome these, and this scheme will also allow a final layout to be decided 
leading to a finalisation of the landscaping. Therefore it is considered that for the above reasons 
this application is acceptable and is therefore recommended for approval. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
STANFORD RIVERS PARISH COUNCIL: – No Objections  
NEIGHBOURS: - No response received. 

Page 54



 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

4 

Application Number: EPF/2199/08 

Site Name: Hill Top Farm, Toot Hill Road 
Greensted, CM5 9LJ 

Scale of Plot: 1/5000

Page 55



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2000/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: The Burrows Lake 

London Road 
Stapleford Tawney 
Romford 
Essex 
 

PARISH: Stapleford Tawney 
 

WARD: Passingford 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Andrew Sheen  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of 2m high fencing 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 Within 3 months of the date of this decision a landscaping scheme for the fence 
hereby approved, shall be submitted in writing, to the Local Planning Authority for its 
approval.   
 

2 The landscaping scheme approved pursuant to Condition 1 shall be implemented in 
full before the end of the first full planting season, following the approval of the 
scheme.  
 

 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal 
 
The proposal is for the retention of 200m of a 2m high chain link fence enclosing a site boundary 
with London Road. The fence is open and topped with barbed wire. The fence is supported by iron 
type posts as opposed to concrete.    
 
Description of Site: 
 
The site is a section of the boundary enclosing the grounds of a fishing lake stretching from the 
gate entrance of the adjoining property and running south west along London Road. A similar 
fence exists to the other side of the entrance gates. The immediate area is characterised by 
mature trees along both sides of the road.  
 
Relevant History: 
 
There is an extensive history with the most relevant and recent being; 
 
EPF/0573/02 - Retention of mobile home on site for security purposes; and retention of 
shed/workshop. Refuse Permission - 26/06/2002. 

Page 56



EPF/1142/07 - Retention of a caravan on site for use as an office and also two snack stalls, one 
for catering use and one for selling bait. Refuse Permission - 17/07/2007. 
EPF/2330/07- Reinstate permission for fishing lodge for use in conjunction with use of the site. 
Withdrawn Decision - 05/11/2007. 
 
Policies Applied:  
 
Policy GB2A – Development in the Green Belt  
Policy GB7A – Conspicuous Development 
Policy DBE4 – Design in the Green Belt 
Policy DBE9 – Loss of Amenity 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues to consider are any possible impact on the Green Belt and potential loss of 
amenity to neighbouring properties.  
 
Impact on the Green Belt 
 
Policy DBE4 requires that new development respects local character in relation to design and 
setting. The use of an open link fence would allow for greenery on the boundary to grow through. If 
this was encouraged to happen the fence could blend sufficiently with its surroundings and in 
many ways provides a more sympathetic means of enclosure than, for example, a solid wooden 
fence. An existing chain link fence on the site provides an example of how such a structure can 
integrate with its surroundings. Subject to the provision of appropriate landscaping, therefore, the 
fence would safeguard the open rural character and appearance of the locality. This can be 
secured by condition and, on this basis the proposal is acceptable in the Green Belt.  
 
Impact on Amenity 
 
Council policy aims to safeguard the amenities of the locality. The proposal would not impact 
significantly on amenity and, as time progresses, the merging of the fence with the trees and 
bushes behind would considerably lessen its current visual impact. Accordingly, the proposal 
meets the aims of council policy in respect of impact on amenity.  
 
Conclusion:  
 
The proposal is appropriate in the Green Belt while landscaping would mitigate its visual impact. 
Since the fence has a minimal impact on the Green Belt setting or local amenity, it is 
recommended it be approved, subject to the imposition of conditions to secure landscaping.  
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:  
 
PARISH COUNCIL: Objection. Looks out of place in rural setting and needs to be removed. 
 
NEIGHBOURS: 
 
SCHOOL HOUSE, STABLEFORD TAWNEY: The fence is unsightly and out of place.  
 

Page 57



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

5 

Application Number: EPF/2000/08 

Site Name: The Burrows Lake, London Road 
Stapleford Tawney,  

Scale of Plot: 1/5000

Page 58



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/1584/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 27 Piercing Hill 

Theydon Bois 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 7JW 
 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 
 

WARD: Theydon Bois 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Richard Stevens 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Retention of garden outbuildings, garden shed, swimming 
pool and tennis courts, terracing of garden, fencing and front 
wall and gates. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission  
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 
NONE 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions).  
This item was also deferred from a previous meeting held on 12 November 2008 for Members to 
attend a site visit.  
 
Description of Proposal:  
  
This application seeks retrospective planning permission for the retention of garden outbuildings, 
an outside swimming pool and the terracing of the garden.  The outbuildings are a pool house and 
related boiler house and steam room, built approximately one metre from the northern boundary of 
the site and a shed built in the south west corner of the site.  The swimming pool is a replacement.   
 
Description of Site:  
   
The application site is located in Piercing Hill, at the southern end of the row of houses which are 
set back from the main road.  The dwelling which stood on the site has been demolished with the 
benefit of planning permission and a replacement is under construction.   

Along the site boundary with 28 Piercing Hill, there is a hedge which is approximately 3 metres in 
height.  The density of the hedge varies along the boundary.  Immediately adjacent to the pool 
house the hedge is fairly dense, although in other places along the boundary are sparse.   

 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/2706/07.  Demolition of existing house and erection of new house with detached garage.  
Approved 13/02/08. 
 

Page 59



EPF/1009/08.  Demolition of existing house and erection of new house with detached garage. 
(Amended application).  Approved 09/07/08.   
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations 
 
DBE1 – Design of New Buildings 
DBE2/9 – Impact of New Development 
LL10 – Retention of Site Landscaping 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
  
Background to Application 
 
The applicants have advised that the works were undertaken as they considered that they would 
constitute ‘permitted development’.  However, as the works were commenced following the 
demolition of the original dwelling, the site did not, at that time, benefit from any permitted 
development rights.  As the planning permission for the new dwelling did not remove permitted 
development rights for outbuildings, these will be reinstated as soon as the new dwelling is 
occupied.  Aside from this technicality relating to the temporary interruption of permitted 
development rights, it is the planning officer’s view that the outbuildings would not actually have 
constituted permitted development anyway.  This is because the buildings have been erected on 
land which appears to have had its level elevated.  When the increase in the level of the land is 
added to the height of the buildings, the total height would exceed the permitted four metres.  
Furthermore, under the current legislation which came into effect on 1st October, outbuildings 
within 2 metres of the site boundary may not exceed 2.5 metres.   
 
The applicants have advised that the terracing of the garden was undertaken in the past and all 
that has been carried out as part of the recent works is a redistribution of the land within the 
terraces.  Some historic terracing is evident from the existing gravel boards which are present 
along the boundary line with 28 Piercing Hill.  However, the extent to what was there in the past 
and what has been undertaken recently is not clear.  What is, however, evident is that there is a 
substantial increase in the level of the land along this boundary line.  Whilst this varies along the 
length of the boundary, adjacent to the pool building the difference in levels is approximately 1.3 
metres.  Due to the natural decline of Piercing Hill, it is considered unlikely that this is the natural 
land level.  However, the condition of the concrete gravel boards suggests that the levels have 
been considerably higher on the application site for a substantial period of time.   
 
The main issues in this case are: 
 

1. The impacts of the development on the amenities of the occupiers of neighbouring 
dwellings; 

2. The impacts of the development on the character and appearance of the area;  
3. The impacts of the development on the Green Belt; and 
4. The impacts on flood risk.   

 

Page 60



Neighbouring Amenity 
 
With regard to the impacts of the proposed development on the amenities of the occupiers of 
neighbouring dwellings, the pool house is visible from the neighbouring property above the hedge 
and due to its size and elevated position it appears quite prominent.  However, having regard to 
the size of the neighbouring garden it is not considered that the buildings are so visually harmful 
that the reduction in outlook can be considered as material.   
 
The terracing of the garden does not give rise to any material increase in overlooking, due to the 
height of the boundary hedge.  Whilst the hedge is quite sparse in some places, this is consistently 
the case throughout the height of the hedge and it is not considered that overlooking at these 
points is substantially greater than would be the case if the sites were at the same level.  It is 
understood that the elevated land level might give rise to a greater perception of overlooking, but 
is not considered that this would amount to a material reduction in amenity that would justify the 
withholding of planning permission. 
 
Following the Members’ site visit the applicant has amended the proposal to reduce ground levels 
rear of the outbuildings adjacent to the site boundary.  A follow up inspection by planning officers 
reveal levels on the boundary have been reduced approximately 300mm. 
 
Impact on Appearance of the Area 

 
The outbuildings are of a fairly traditional design, which is considered to be in keeping with the 
design of surrounding properties.  Whilst they cover a large area, the site itself is large and as a 
result it is not considered that the buildings are overly dominant within the site.  Furthermore, it is 
not considered that the terracing of the garden or the creation of an external swimming pool has 
had an adverse effect of the appearance of the area. The site is not within an Article 4 Area. 
 
Impact on the Green Belt 
 
The proposed outbuildings would cover a substantial floor area (the pool house and adjacent 
buildings would have a combined footprint of 51.5m² and the shed would have a footprint of 14m²).  
However, all of the outbuildings would, if constructed following the first occupation of the dwelling, 
be permitted development if they were re-sited so that they were at least 2.5 metres from the site 
boundaries and on the original land level.  Whilst it is not clear exactly what the original land level 
was, it is not considered that these revisions would materially reduce the impact on the Green Belt.  
Having regard to this ‘fall-back’ position and to the size of the buildings in relation to the site and 
the landscaping which screens them, it is not considered that they have a detrimental impact on 
the openness of the Green Belt.   
 
Flood Risk  

 
The details submitted for the development already carried out, demonstrates sufficiently the 
principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems and as such there is reduced risk of potential flooding 
on site, which complies with flood risk requirements.  Following the Members’ site visit the 
applicant has amended the proposal to include additional drainage between the outbuildings and 
adjacent site boundary.  A follow up inspection by planning officers revealed the drainage had 
been installed. 

 
Conclusion 
 
In light of the above appraisal, taking neighbours objections and the views of the parish council 
into account, the proposal accords with the relevant Local Plan policies and as such is 
recommended for approval. 
 

Page 61



SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS:  
 
THEYDON BOIS PARISH COUNCIL.  Objection.  The overall size of the pool house and 
accompanying boiler house and steam room buildings, in their current position in the middle of the 
garden and on the side boundary, represent an overly dominant feature to the detriment of the 
neighbouring property (number 28).  The terracing of the garden which has raised the overall 
height of the buildings, in comparison with the neighbouring property, has exacerbated the issue 
and subsequent impact.  We have no objection to the fencing and front wall and gates at the front 
of the property. 
 
NEIGHBOURS: 
 
28 PIERCING  HILL.  Objection.  Contrary to assertions by others, there has been considerable 
terracing work carried out in the garden, most of which did not previously exist.  Such works may 
exacerbate the existing flooding issue, caused by water run-off from the forest.   Also concerned 
regarding potential for subsidence.  The pool house and adjacent buildings are truly substantial 
and loom large over my garden.  The buildings are excessive and an eyesore.  Site is in an Article 
4 Direction Area.  
 
 
 

Page 62



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

71.6m

65.2m

67.1m

77.7m

85.3m

94.8m

63

66

11

14

72

19

1

Stables

20

12
13

27

13
a

Arbour Dene

34

35

31

Wansfell
College

36

28
a

36
a

Woodview

Pond

Ponds

Pond

Path (um
)

Tennis
Court

LB

El
Sub Sta

Golf Course

Tennis C
ourt

Paddocks

MORGAN

P
IE

R
C

IN
G

H
ILL

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

6 

Application Number: EPF/1584/08 

Site Name: 27 Piercing Hill, Theydon Bois 
CM16 7JW 

Scale of Plot: 1/2500

Page 63



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2137/08 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 6 Orchard Drive 

Theydon Bois 
Epping 
Essex 
CM16 7DJ 
 

PARISH: Theydon Bois 
 

WARD: Theydon Bois 
 

APPLICANT: Mr & Mrs ALma Batty 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Loft conversion with side and rear dormers. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed extension, shall match 
those of the existing building. 
 

3 Prior to first occupation of the building hereby approved the proposed window 
opening in the South side gable end at first floor shall be fitted with obscured glass 
and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7metres above the floor of the room in which 
the window is installed, and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section P4, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Loft conversion with side and rear dormers. 
 
The rear dormer would be 2.3m wide and of a flat roofed box design, and would match an existing 
rear dormer of similar appearance. The side dormer would be 2.4m wide and be of pitched roofed 
design and be located on the side of an existing original protruding front element of the property. 
Three new velux roof lights would be inserted; 2 on the North side of the front protruding element 
and 1 on the South facing gable end. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
Semi-detached bungalow on a road of various types and sizes of properties in Theydon Bois. It 
has an existing bedroom in the roof space at the rear. 
 

Page 64



Relevant History: 
 
None 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations 
Policy DBE2 – Effect on Neighbouring Properties 
Policy DBE9 – Excessive loss of amenity to neighbouring properties 
Policy DBE10 – Design of Residential Extensions 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main issues that arise with this application are the following: 
 

• Design Considerations 
• Residential Amenity 
• Impact of using the first floor on housing stock 

 
1. Design Considerations 
- The proposed rear box dormer complements an existing similar dormer at the rear, is shielded 

from the streetscene and it causes no significant harm to the property or area. 
- The proposed side dormer has been changed from a 2.4m wide flat roofed box design to a 

pitched roofed dormer of the same width following advice from the Local Planning Authority. 
- As such, the amended design acceptably complements the existing hipped roofs of the 

property, and would represent an acceptable and unobtrusive feature in the streetscene. 
 
2. Residential Amenity 
- There are no facing side windows to number 4 Orchard Drive to the South, or to number 8 

Orchard Drive to the North. 
- As such, it is not necessary to impose a condition to obscure glaze the front side dormer. But, 

so as to avoid potential overlooking into the rear garden of number 4 to the South from the 
proposed window in the side gable, it is necessary to impose a condition to obscure glaze this 
window. 

 
3. Impact of using first floor on housing stock 
- The ridge height is not proposed to be raised, and as such this loft conversion could be 

undertaken without the need for planning permission, it is just the physical additions, i.e. the 
dormers that require permission. 

- As such, only limited weight can be given to any assessment of the benefits of retaining the 
bungalow in terms of the housing stock in the village. 

- Policy H4A of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations seeks to retain a housing mix with regard 
to needs identified in the latest housing needs survey. 

- At present, there is no evidence to suggest that there is an overriding need to retain bungalows 
in Theydon Bois, and as such the conversion of this bungalow to a two storey property is not 
excessively harmful to the local housing mix or contrary to policy. 

- The key point, however, remains that the loft conversion could be undertaken in any case 
without requiring planning consent. 

 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposal would not be of detriment to the character of the property or streetscene and there 
would be no unacceptable impacts upon the amenities of neighbouring residents. The loft 
conversion without the dormer windows could be undertaken without requiring planning consent, 

Page 65



and in general the proposal complies with the relevant policy. As such, this application is 
recommended for approval. 
 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
THEYDON BOIS PARISH COUNCIL:  Objection. We feel that this is an unsympathetic conversion 
of a bungalow and the proposed development is lacking in architectural merit. It would be 
preferable to see pitched rather than flat-roofed dormer additions. 
 
We would like to stress yet again our concern at the number of bungalow conversions which are 
taking place in Theydon Bois to the detriment of the housing mix in the village. There is recognition 
of this problem in Policy H4A of the Local Plan and Para 9.23a makes particular reference to 
bungalows and the need to maintain smaller dwellings for an ageing population. 
 
THEYDON BOIS AND DISTRICT RURAL PRESERVATION SOCIETY:  
- Raised concerns over loss of another small dwelling in Theydon Bois. 
- Concerns over appearance of dormer at the side/front.   
 
NEIGHBOURS: No response received. 
 
 
 

Page 66



 
 
123 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 

 
53.9m

56.7m

3a

Lamorna

11

V

3

10

2

1

12

M
yo

la

Three
Elms

11

Ka
yt

ho
m

4

Fo
re

st
 G

le
n

H
es

w
el

lWain

Garage

Baldocks

19

1

17

36

26

14

18

Sub Sta

El

7

3a

5

2

3

9

19

Cr
of

t

Gree
n

Hed
ge

s

Bu
ck

la
nd

s

10

OR
CH

A
M

EA
D

COPPICE ROW

BA
RN

BU

EFDC 

EFDC

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee East 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

7 

Application Number: EPF/2137/08 

Site Name: 6 Orchard Drive, Theydon Bois 
CM16 7DJ 

Scale of Plot: 1/1250

Page 67



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEES
	3 MINUTES
	7 DEVELOPMENT CONTROL
	Plans Schedule of Applications


